# Archaeological Journal.

PUBLISHED UNDER THE DIRECTION OF

### THE CENTRAL COMMITTEE

OF

The Archaeological Enstitute of Great Britain and Freland,

FOR THE ENCOURAGEMENT AND PROSECUTION OF

RESEARCHES INTO THE ARTS AND MONUMENTS

OF

The Early and Middle Ages.

VOLUME XVII.

### LONDON:

PUBLISHED AT THE OFFICE OF THE INSTITUTE, 26, SUFFOLK STREET, PALL MALL EAST.

(DISTRIBUTED GRATUITOUSLY TO SUBSCRIBING MEMBERS.)

TO BE OBTAINED THROUGH ALL BOOKSELLERS, FROM (THE PRINTERS MESSRS. BRADBURY AND EVANS, WHITEFRIARS.

MDCCCLX.

THE CENTRAL COMMITTEE of the Archaeological Institute desire that it should be distinctly understood that they are not responsible for any statements or opinions expressed in the Archaeological Journal, the authors of the several memoirs and communications being alone answerable for the same.

## CONTENTS.

ı	AGE
Contributions to the History of Britain under the Romans. Roman Inscriptions	
and Sepulchral Remains at Lincoln. By the Rev. EDWARD TROLLOPE, M.A.,	
F.S.A., and ARTHUR TROLLOPE, Local Secretary of the Institute at Lincoln	1
On an Heraldic Window in the North Aisle of the Nave of York Cathedral. By	
CHARLES WINSTON and WESTON STYLEMAN WALFORD, F.S.A 22,	132
The Preceptory of the Hospitalers at Chibburn, Northumberland; with some	
Notices of Temple Thornton in the same county. By WILLIAM WOODMAN,	
F.S.A. Newcastle, Town Clerk of Morpeth	35
Note on the Ancient Plan of the Monastery of St. Gall, in the ninth century.	
By Dr. FERDINAND KELLER, President of the Society of Antiquaries of	
Zurich	48
The Ethnology of Cheshire, traced chiefly in the Local Names. By the Rev.	
JOHN EARLE, M.A., late Anglo-Saxon Professor in the University of Oxford	93
Recent Discoveries of Roman Remains at Great Chesterford, Essex. By the	
LORD BRAYBROOKE, F.S.A., Vice-President	117
The Court-house, Clapton-in-Gordano, Somerset. By Edward William Godwin,	
Architect	128
Observations on Roman Remains in Sedbury, within the parish of Tidenham,	
Gloucestershire. By George Ormerod, D.C.L., F.R.S	189
On the probable Identity of the Gloucestershire Chapelry of St. Briavel's, recog-	
nised as Lidneia Parva in the twelfth century, with the Ledenei of the	
Saxon Hundred of Ledenei, named in Domesday. By George Ormerod,	
D.C.L., F.R.S	194
On a Bronze Weight found on the site of the Hellespontic Abydos. By FRANK	
CALVERT, Hon. Corr. Member of the Institute	199
The Parliaments of Gloucester. By the Rev. Charles Henry Hartshorne, M.A.	201
Notice of a Roll of Arms belonging to Wilkinson Mathews, Esq., Q.C.	218
The Combined Use of the Match-lock and the Flint-lock in the Improvements	
in Fire-arms. By John Hewitt	224
The Ancient Iron Trade of the Forest of Dean, Gloucestershire. By the Rev.	
H. G. Nicholls, M.A.	227

	PAGE
Report on the Progress of the Excavations at Wroxeter, the Roman Urioconium.	
By the Rev. Harry M. Scarth, M.A.	240
Contributions to the Ancient Geography of the Troad. By Frank Calvert, Hon. Corr. Member of the Institute:	
On the Site and Remains of Colonæ	287
On the Site and Remains of Ophrynium	291
On the Monument of King Edward II. in Gloucester Cathedral, and Mediæval	
Sculpture. By Richard Westmacott, Professor of Sculpture, R.A	297
Roman Remains in the vicinity of Padstow, Cornwall. By the Rev. Edward	
Trollope, M.A., F.S.A	311
ORIGINAL DOCUMENTS:	
Safe Conduct granted by James III., King of Scots, to the Earl of War-	
wick and others. By Albert Way, M.A.	51
Lease of a Piece of Pasture to Haltemprice Priory, Yorkshire. By	
George Wentworth	149
Inventory of the Household and Personal Effects, &c., of Robert	
Bingham of Bingham's Melcombe, Dorset, A.D. 1561. By the Rev.	
C. W. BINGHAM, M.A	151
Notice of a Formula of a Papal Indulgence, printed by Pynson, and of	
some other Documents of like character. By Albert Way, M.A.	250
Historiola de pietate regis Henrici III., A.D. 1259. By EDWARD A.	
Bond	317
Proceedings at Meetings of the Archæological Institute:—December, 1859,	
	957
to July, 1860 54, 158 Auditors' Report, and Abstract of Accounts, 1859	186
Annual Meeting held at Gloucester	320
Annual Meeting neid at Giodeester	520
Notices of Archæological Publications:—	
Sussex Archæological Collections; published by the Sussex Archæolo-	
gical Society. Vol. XI	79
Official Catalogue of the Tower Armories. By JOHN HEWITT	89
Emblems of Saints. By the Very Rev. F. C. Husenbeth, D.D. 2nd ed.	91
Address by LORD WROTTESLEY, President of the British Association, at	
the Meeting in Oxford, 1860	187
Publications of the Norwegian Society for the Promotion of Archæological	
Science	356
ADDITION OF THE STATE OF THE ST	9 050
A RUM SCHLORAGE INTELLIGIENCE 92 280	1 224

### LIST OF ILLUSTRATIONS.

	PAGE
Sepulchral Glass Vessels, Cathedral Library, Lincoln. (Two wood-cuts.)*	. 3
Bronze Armlets, found at Lincoln	. 3
Sepulchral Remains and Inscriptions, found at Lincoln. (Two wood-cuts.)	. 5
Ditto Ditto. (Two wood-cuts.) To face	6
Sepulchral Urns, found at Lincoln. (Two wood-cuts.)	. 12
Inscribed Tablet, St. Mary's-le-Wigford, Lincoln	. 15
Sepulchral Tablet, Lincoln	16
Inscribed Slab, found at Lincoln, now in the British Museum To face	19
Inscribed Slabs, found in 1859 at Lincoln. (Two wood-cuts.) To face	20
Vessel of Samian ware, found at Lincoln	. 21
Diagram, showing the arrangement of the design of an Heraldic Window, York Cathedral	E .
Ground-Plan, Preceptory of the Hospitalers at Chibburn	. 36
Sections of Mouldings, ibid. (Three wood-cuts.)	. 37
Ditto Ditto	. 38
Elevations of the South and East sides of the Chapel, ibid To face	38
Representation of a pila or mortar, in the plan of the Monastery of St. Gall	. 48
Wooden Mortar, formerly used at Betlis, Switzerland	. 49
Ditto Ditto	. 50
Section of a Tumulus on Thorp Moor, Yorkshire	. 58
Flint Arrow-heads, found in co. Durham and Northumberland. (Two wood	
cuts.)  Hand Brick found at Ingoldmells Lincolnshire	. 60

<sup>\*</sup> These and the following illustrations, illustrative of Roman Antiquities at Lincoln, have been chiefly contributed by the Rev. Edward Trollope.

	PAGE
Leaden Ampulla, or Pilgrim's Badge, found in the Netherlands. (Two woodcuts.)	68
Incised Sepulchral Slab at Jerpoint Abbey, co. Kilkenny	72
Roman Gold Ring, found in Cambridgeshire.*	75
Chinese Gold Ring, found in Ireland	75
Ampulla of Glass, found at Great Chesterford, Essex To face	118
Roman Lamp of red ware, found ibid.	120
Ornament on Samian ware, found ibid.	120
Potter's mark on an Amphora, found ibid.	124
Vase of red ware and ring of terra-cotta, possibly a stand for the vase, found	
ibid. (Two wood-cuts.)	124
Bronze figure of a River-God, found ibid	125
Amphoræ, found ibid. (Two wood-cuts.) To face	126
Vase of dark-coloured ware and Glass Vessels, found ibid. (Three wood-cuts.)	
To face	127
The Court House, Clapton-in-Gordano, Somerset, N.E. view, and ground-plan. (Two wood-cuts.)	128
Ditto, Door from the Tower, Sections of Mouldings, Doorway of Oak, &c. (Six	112 000
wood-cuts.)	129
Ground-Plan, ancient house at Bingham's Melcombe, Dorset	151
Stamp, crowned initial on a weight at Cambridge	164
Bronze weight, in the Museum of the Cambridge Antiquarian Society	165
Antiquities of Stone, found in Ireland and in Denbighshire. (Three wood-	
cuts.)	172
Gold Roman Ring, in Lord Braybrooke's collection, found at Carlisle	182
Plan of a Roman position in Sedbury, within the parish of Tidenham.+  To face	189
Roman Pottery, found at Sedbury, Gloucestershire	192
Ditto Ditto	192
South side of the Nave, St. Briavel's Church, Gloucestershire To face	198
Bronze Lion-weight, found on the site of the Hellespontic Abydos . To face	199
Diagram, illustrating the forms of ancient spoons	260
Flint arrow-head, found at Hoxne, Suffolk	261
Leaden object, possibly a whorl used in spinning	267

<sup>\*</sup> For this and the thirteen following illustrations the Society is indebted to the kind liberality of Lord Braybrooke.

<sup>†</sup> This, and also the three following illustrations, have been very kindly presented to the Institute by Dr. Ormerod, the author of the Memoirs to which they relate.

### LIST OF ILLUSTRATIONS.

vii

Inscribed Roman tile, Caerwent, and incised stone at Caerleon	* .		To face	270
Ground-Plan, Old Tolbooth Prison, Edinburgh				273
South View, ditto				274
Map, showing the site of Ophrynium in the Troad			To face	287
Roman Remains, found near Padstow, Cornwall. (Twelve woo	d-cr	ıts.)	To face	315

Six wood-cuts from Sussex Archæological Collections, Vol. XI. View of Paxhill, to face p. 79; the Old Church, Hurstpierpoint, to face p. 85.

<sup>\*</sup> For this illustration the Institute is indebted to the kindness of Mr. Lee, of Caerleon, by whom the plate here given has been etched for this Journal.

### ADDITIONS AND CORRECTIONS.

Page 119. The ampulla here noticed as found in a tumulus at Meldreth, Cambridgeshire, are by accident described erroneously as now preserved in Lord Braybrooke's Museum at Audley End.

Page 125. A fragment of another recumbent statue of a sea deity, probably representing Neptune, with the usual attribute of the trident, is now to be seen in the court-yard at Wallington House, Northumberland, the residence of Sir Walter C. Trevelyan, Bart.; it was found at Carraw, on the Roman Wall, between the stations of *Cilurnum* and *Procolitia*. This figure is carved in stone very rudely, and it is figured in the Archæologia Æliana, vol. i. p. 204, 4to series.

Page 165. See further notices of weights, and of the regulations in regard to marking them, in a Memoir by Mr. Brewer, Journal of the Archæological Association, vol. viii. p. 309.

Page 172. A detailed account of the monastery upon Bardsey Island is given by the Rev. H. Longueville Jones, in the Archæologia Cambrensis, vol. ii. p. 53.

Page 184. See further particulars relating to bronze tripod vessels, such as are here described, Archæologia Æliana, vol. v. new series, p. 110.

Page 252, line 6, for "of," read "and of,"